ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 29, 2016
1:32 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Ma Costello, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or Kevi n Meyer

Senator Gary Stevens

Senat or Johnny Ellis

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation Board of Directors

DAVI D CRUZ - Pal ner, Al aska
LUKE THOVAS HOPKI NS - Fai rbanks, Al aska

- HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 206

"An Act relating to a reinsurance program for residents who are
high risks and insurer assessnents to cover the costs of the
rei nsurance  program relating to application for state
innovation waivers for health care insurance; relating to
definitions of ‘'residents who are high risks' and 'covered
lives'; and providing for an effective date.™

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 55
"An Act relating to the practice of optonetry."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 206
SHORT TI TLE: RElI NSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH I NS. WAl VERS

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2016



SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 25/ 16 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 25/ 16 (S) L&C, FIN

03/ 29/ 16 (S) L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
BILL: SB 55

SHORT TITLE: OPTOVETRY & OPTOMETRI STS
SPONSOR(s): G ESSEL BY REQUEST

02/ 18/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 15 (S) HSS, L&C

03/ 18/ 15 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 18/ 15 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 18/ 15 (S) M NUTE ( HSS)

02/ 01/ 16 (S) HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 01/ 16 (S Moved SB 55 Qut of Commttee

02/ 01/ 16 (S) M NUTE ( HSS)

02/ 08/ 16 (S) HSS RPT 3DP 1NR

02/ 08/ 16 (S DP: STEDMAN, STOLTZE, d ESSEL

02/ 08/ 16 (S) NR: ELLIS

03/ 10/ 16 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 10/ 16 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 10/ 16 (S) M NUTE (L&C)

03/ 29/ 16 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D CRUZ, Appointee

Al aska Gasline Development Corporation Board of Directors
Pal mer, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation Board of Directors.

LUKE THOVAS HOPKI NS, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Gasline Development Corporation Board of Directors
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation Board of Directors.

LORI W NG HEI ER Di rector

Di vi sion of Insurance

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity and Economi c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed the two parts of SB 206.

SHEELA TALLMAN, Legislative Policy Manager

SENATE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2016



Premera Bl ue Cross Blue Shield of Al aska
Seattl e, Washi ngton
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 206.

ALBERT FOGLE

Al aska Association of Health Underwiters

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 206.

KRAI G ANDERSON, Seni or Vice President and Actuary
Mbda Heal th

Portl and, Oregon

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 206.

M KE BENNETT, OD

Al aska Optonetric Association

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 55.

BOB PALMER, State Affairs Policy Director

Ameri can Acadeny of Opht hal nol ogy

Washi ngton, D.C.

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

PAUL MARKS, representing hinself
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

GRI FFI TH STEI NER, MD, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

M CHEAL GUZMAN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

MATTHEW GLYNN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

TIM SM TH, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

EDDY | VI ZARY, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2016



M CHAEL BRENNAN, MD - Opht hal nol ogi st

Al aska Opht hal nol ogy Soci ety

North Carolina

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

LUCRETI A ANN DEM S, representing herself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

ALFRED DERAMUS, MD - Opht hal nol ogi st representing hinsel f
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

PAUL BARNEY, Chair
Al aska Board of Optonetry Exam ners
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 55.

DAVI D ZUMBRO, MD - Opht hal nol ogi st representing hinsel f
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

ROBERT ARNOLD, Opht hal nol ogi st representing hinsel f
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 55.

STEVE DOBSOQON, President

Al aska Optonetric Association

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 55.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:32:43 PM

CHAIR M A COSTELLO call ed the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:32 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators G essel, Ellis, Stevens, and Chair Costello.

Confirmati on Hearings
Al aska Gasline Devel opnent Corporation Board of Directors

1:33:51 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO announced the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings of governor appointnments to the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnment Corporation Board of Directors.

1: 33: 50 PM
At ease

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2016



1: 35: 27 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the hearing and asked M. Cruz to tel
the commttee his interest in continuing to serve on the Al aska
Gasl i ne Devel opnent Corporation (AGC) Board of Directors.

1:36:17 PM

DAVID CRUZ, Appointee, Alaska Gasline Devel opnment Corporation
(AGDC) Board of Directors, said he has been on the AGC Board
since its inception. He is engaged in the industry on a daily
basis and he owns and operates several conpanies involved wth
pi peline construction. He has served on the board in a nunber of
capacities and is willing to continue to serve. He believes the
projects are essential for Al aska going forward.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked how progress currently is going w th AKLNG

MR CRUZ said the project is going well and good working
relationships with the producers continues. Al participants are
willing to help the project nove forward. H's overall experience
is that this is a large endeavor to nmke either project
successful and economc. It is inportant that Al aska is an equa
partner with the producers

CHAI R COSTELLO asked what he sees as the largest challenge and
how the board can facilitate it.

MR CRUZ said it is advantageous that the state is an equa
partner to facilitate the project. Getting three producers
together and working on the terns is the tough part; the
technical side is the easy part.

1:40: 57 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he has signed a confidentiality
agr eenent .

MR. CRUZ said yes.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how many have signed such agreenents.

MR. CRUZ said he's the only one.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the previous chair has a role wth
AGDC

MR. CRUZ replied he is general counsel.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2016



SENATOR G ESSEL asked how the search for a president is going.

MR CRUZ said it's going well and the board is interview ng the
top two candidates. The legislature will have a say prior to the
hire.

1:42: 51 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked when gas will flow

MR CRUZ said the target has always been 2025. Both projects
have had steady progress and AGC will hold the permts this
year, which is nonunental. The rights-of-way permts can be
handed over to AKLNG to facilitate the project.

1:44:38 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if the board has any concerns about the
progress of the AKLNG project or current state policies
regarding it.

MR CRUZ said no; AGDC is well engaged with the state gasline
t eam and has good working relationships with all the entities.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked if the board has a diverse enough
menbership to tackle this project.

MR. CRUZ said yes; the board works well together.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he feels the board has the right
qgual i fications.

MR. CRUZ said he does at this point.

1:47:56 PM
SENATOR MEYER j oi ned the conm tt ee.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted he is distinguishing between the current
board and the previous board.

MR. CRUZ said that's correct. Today's requirenents differ from
t hose of previous boards.

CHAI R COSTELLO thanked M. Cruz for his dedication to the state.
She noted that she will forward all the nanes in one batch.

1: 50: 40 PM
At ease

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2016



1:51: 08 PM

CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and asked M. Hopkins to
tell the commttee his interest in serving on the Al aska Gasline
Devel opnent Corporation Board of Directors.

1:51: 47 PM

LUKE THOVAS HOPKINS, Appointee, Alaska Gasline Devel opnent
Corporation Board of Directors, reviewed his personal and
professional history in Alaska. Mst recently he has been
involved with organizing and noving forward on building a new
gas utility in Fairbanks. He is pleased to be part of the AGDC
board and chair of the Communications Conmttee and a nenber of
t he Governance Conmmittee.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked what he is doing to ensure the success of
AKLNG.

MR. HOPKI NS nentioned approving actions on receiving funding for
the buyout of TransCanada that included acquiring all of
TransCanada's data. Also, he helped with the work plan and
budget to get to a decisional point.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if his role is reactive or proactive.

MR. HOPKINS said he sees his role as proactive. He discussed the
board neetings and interactions to keep on a tineline.

CHAIR COSTELLO asked if he had signed a confidentiality
agr eement .

MR. HOPKINS said he has never been presented with a docunment to
sign, but is aware of the process and procedure.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked if he would sign one if presented.

MR. HOPKINS said he’d need to read it before signing, but he has
no problemwth confidentiality.

2:00:47 PM
SENATOR MEYER asked who the | egal counsel is for AGDC.

MR. HOPKINS said it’s John Burns.
SENATOR MEYER asked if M. Burns was a previous board nenber

MR. HOPKINS answered yes; he was on the board wuntil md-
Novenber .

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2016



SENATOR MEYER asked M. Hopkins for exanples of his gas pipeline
experi ence.

MR. HOPKINS nentioned working with the Alaska Gasline Port
Aut hority projects as a board nenber from 2006 to 2010. He said
he al so worked on the AG A project as one of the options for the
APP project. He expanded on his work with the buildout of the
Fai rbanks Gas Authority. He also wrked on the size of
transm ssion lines for the Fairbanks nunicipal utility.

SENATOR MEYER asked if he supports having two |egislative
menbers on the AGDC board.

MR HOPKINS said what's inportant is that everyone works
t oget her and conmuni cation is open.

SENATOR MEYER said he hopes he understands the legislature's
frustration being asked to appropriate noney when they aren’t
part of the executive di scussion.

2:07:44 PM

MR. HOPKINS said having the two funds already appropriated is
i mportant to people outside of the board, such as producers. He
voi ced appreciation for |egislative funding.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked what undergraduate degree he received at
the University of Al aska - Fairbanks.

MR. HOPKINS said he doesn’t have a degree, just four years' work
starting in wldlife nmanagenent and ending in physical
ant hropol ogy. From there he started a small mnufacturing
busi ness.

CHAIR COSTELLO thanked M. Hopkins for comng before the
conmittee.

2:10:15 PM
At ease

SB 206- REI NSURANCE PROGRAM HEALTH | NS. WAl VERS

2:11:18 PM
CHAIR COSTELLO reconvened the neeting and announced the
consi deration of SB 206.

2:12: 00 PM

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2016



LORI WNG HEIER Director, Division of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Community and Econom c Devel opment (DCCED), discussed
the two parts of SB 206. The bill is designed to allow the
director of insurance to establish a reinsurance program to
address the high-cost clains that were once part, or considered
part, of the Al aska Conprehensive Health Insurance Association
(ACHIA). This was prior to the Affordable Care Act (ACA) being
i npl enented. The bill expressly establishes a reinsurance pool
for high-risk clains to go into ACHHA and be reinsured through
ACHI A - Chapter 55 of Title 21. It wll operate nuch like the
Children's Reinsurance Pool of 2013.

M5. WNG HElI ER continued to say that SB 206 al so says that the
50 percent tax credit would no longer be allowed for this
particul ar i nsurance program

The other part of the bill allows the director of insurance to
apply to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid (CM5) for an
innovation waiver. This is a Section 1332 waiver to provide
I nsur ance under ACA in i ndi vi dual smal | group, and,
potentially, the large group markets in Al aska. Enabling
legislation is required to begin the process.

She provided background on why this is needed. She stressed the
hi gh cost of the individual market in Al aska which has seen a 40
percent increase in the past two years from Prenera and Mda

Early indications are that rate increases will be nore than 25
percent. In addition, the risk assessnent and the risk corridor
will sunset in 2016 under the federal program Reinsurance al one

paid over $19 million to Prenmera and $13 nillion to Mda. Those
costs need to be reabsorbed somehow.

She provided exanples of the 40 percent rate increases to
consunmers. In 2014, a 45-year-old was paying about $486 a nonth
for a gold plan; the sane nenbership in 2017 wll be about
$1, 300 a nont h.

2:16: 36 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO asked if the federal reinsurance program expires
or sunsets.

M5. WNG HEIER said it expires at the end of 2016. ACH A w |
replace it in some way. It won't reduce rates, but will provide
stability. Provider |osses are substantial and the rates nust be
adequat e.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE -9- March 29, 2016



CHAI R COSTELLO asked her to explain the higher-risk nedical
condi ti ons.

M5. WNG HEIER said they would take the nobst costly conditions
out of the individual market and spread them out to ACH A It
wi Il be a reinsurance pool.

2:19: 09 PM
SENATOR ELLIS asked, should this legislation pass, will it be a
negotiation point, or wll the state just hope that private

insurers don’'t increase rates as much as 25 percent. He asked
what the ternms of negotiation mght be.

M5. WNG HEIER said she could not nmake commtnments regarding
rates, but the state will always negotiate and the rates wll
still not be enough to cover all the clains in the pool. There
is alot of uncertainty in the markets.

SENATOR ELLIS commented that he doesn’'t know what the state is
getting for this kind of cost, even though he understands the
adm nistration's need to take action to protect consuners.

M5. W NG HEIER explained if the state continues on the current
path, the rates will likely increase and the individual market
will go into a death spiral. The intent of the ACA was for
people to be able to afford insurance. Alaska is faced wth
incredibly high costs for health care resulting in high costs
for insurance. The idea is to spread the top 10 percent of high-
cost clains over the reinsurance pool.

She pointed out that the state could also consider the Chapter
1332 waiver for a long-term solution. The reinsurance plan is an
i mredi at e answer .

SENATOR ELLI S said "or a portion thereof."”

CHAI R COSTELLO said her understanding is this bill would make
the rate increase | ess egregious.

M5. WNG HEI ER said that’s correct.

CHAI R COSTELLO offered her understanding that the second part of
the bill provides a longer-term solution. She asked if the
division would return to the legislature in order to pursue the
wai ver .

M5. W NG HEI ER sai d yes.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 10- March 29, 2016



2:23:.18 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO opened public testinony.

2:23:30 PM

SHEELA TALLMAN, Legislative Policy Manager, Prenera Blue Cross
Blue Shield of Alaska, testified in support of SB 206. She
provided the history of Prenmera in Al aska since 1952 and its
coverage. She commented on the changes in the market that are
impacting Prenera's individual plan premuns. She noted that
Premera has experienced a nunber of new high-cost enrollees
after the health reformin 2014. In 2014, Prenera had | osses of
about $13 mllion in the individual nmarket and sought rate
i ncreases of alnost 40 percent for 2015 and 2016 to account for
the high risk individuals.

Prenmera is taking in, on average, $713 per nmenber per nonth in
prem um and paying out $913 per nenber per nonth. There aren’t
enough ratepayers to offset the high costs, nor are the
subsi di es sone receive.

M5. TALLMAN stated that Prenera supports the reinsurance program
and the innovation waiver. The program hel ps address prem um
i ncreases, but also helps provide sonme stability to the market
and may attract new conpetitors.

2:29:27 PM
SENATOR ELLIS asked about the tineframe on the waiver going
forward

M5. TALLMAN said the states can begin applying for the waiver in
2017.

SENATOR ELLIS asked what other states have a simlar issue of
rising healthcare costs and setting up a reinsurance approach.

M5. TALLMAN said Oregon has addressed the matter and other
states will follow

SENATOR ELLIS asked if Prenmera will comrit to an anount of a
| ess-than-40-percent increase in premuns if this legislation
passes.

M5. TALLMAN said she can’t make a specific conmm tnment regarding

rates, but would be commtted to working on rule nmaking for a
bal anced assessnent across the market.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2016



2:32: 57 PM

SENATOR ELLIS said the state is being asked in a relatively
short tinmefrane to take an affirmative action. He is wlling to
entertain the request, but would |ike insurance conpanies to
commt as well and form a partnership.

CHAI R COSTELLO said she appreciates the remarks and is aware of
the situation that it brings.

M5. TALLMAN said Premera is commtted to working wth the
di vision on the actual program that would be inplenented via the
rul e maki ng and has been doing so for the |ast year. There is a
| ot of uncertainty now regardi ng the market.

2:35:16 PM

ALBERT FOCGLE, Al aska Association of Health Underwiters,
testified in support of SB 206. He described the bill as a too
to help with the survival of the individual marketplace. It wll
help stabilize the market and snmooth out premuns for
individuals and famlies going forward. It isn't the fault of
the carriers, but the geography of Al aska and its unique market.

He highlighted that ACA linmts premiuns a health insurance
carrier can charge. They are allowed just 20 percent for
adm ni strative costs.

2:38: 27 PM

KRAI G ANDERSQN, Senior Vice President and Actuary, Mda Health
testified in support of SB 206. He described Mdda’s business in
Al aska since 2007. Mda offers policies both on and off the
exchanges and is one of tw providers. They are commtted to
policyholders in Al aska. He echoed comments nade by M. Tall nan
regarding the market and how the bill would help. He noted they
have submtted detailed clains data to nodel the inpact of the
ACHI A program

CHAIR COSTELLO closed public testinony and held SB 206 in
conmittee.

SB 55- OPTOVETRY & OPTOMETRI STS

2:42:01 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO announced the consideration of SB 55. She noted
this is the second hearing and the intent is to continue public
testi nony.

2:42: 55 PM

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2016



DR MKE BENNETT, OD, Alaska Optonetric Association (AQA),
testified in support of SB 55. He provided his education and
work history. He said there have been a lot of fairy tales about

what the bill would do and they are not accurate. He countered
the notion that the AOA board would authorize wuntrained
procedures should the bill pass. He pointed out that self-

regul ating boards have a long history of success and their
primary charge is to protect the public. There is no hidden
agenda.

2:45: 46 PM

BOB PALMER, State Affairs Policy Director, Anerican Acadeny of
Opht hal nol ogy, testified in opposition to SB 55. He focused on
policy issues, especially the language in the bill regarding
surgery, which |eaves open what is acceptable. He believes
optonetrists would be able to perform several hundred additional
surgi cal pr ocedur es, which is unacceptable. He suggested
defining what constitutes surgery and then back out what should
not be incl uded.

He discussed how other states have addressed this issue. He
concl uded that defining surgery protects the patient.

2:50: 27 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL asked where he is from

MR. PALMER sai d Washi ngton D. C

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if his organization paid for novie, radio,
and TV ads, robocalls, and mailings.

MR. PALMER said no. They gave the Al aska Society of Eye
Physi ci ans and Surgeons a grant of about $50, 000.

CHAI R COSTELLO asked him to provide the specific information to
the conmttee.

2:51: 55 PM
PAUL MARKS, representing hinself, testified in opposition to SB
55. He shared a personal experience with optonetrists and said

he doesn’'t support an optonetrist doing surgery when he isn't
qualified to do so.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if an optonetrist did surgery on his eye.

MR. MARKS answered no; he went to Anchorage.

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 13- March 29, 2016



SENATOR G ESSEL restated that the optometrist did not perform
surgery.

2:55: 53 PM

DR GRIFFITH STEINER, MD, testified in opposition to SB 55. He
provided his professional education and practice as an eye
surgeon. He described this bill as specifically designed to
expand the scope of practice for optonetrists. It allows for
injections around the eye and the right to do |aser surgery. He
mai ntai ned that they will not have enough training to do those
procedur es.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the State Medical Board has a |ist of
surgeries that he can perform

DR. STEI NER sai d no, because physicians have nedi cal training.

SENATOR G ESSEL enphasi zed that the bill does not contain a |ist
t hat defines what the Board of Medicine can authorize. She asked
if his authorization is based on his education, which 1is
determ ned by the board.

DR. STEINER said yes; however, a nedical board is different than
an optonetry board, because the nedical board represents people
that are trained in nedicine and surgery, with many nore years
of training.

SENATOR G ESSEL said optonetrists are not asking for an
expansi on of practi ce.

DR. STEI NER di sagr eed.

2:59: 55 PM

M CHEAL GUZMAN, representing hinmself, testified in opposition to
SB 55. He offered his understanding that the bill would allow an
optonetrist to perform eye surgery and prescribe narcotics and
he does not support that.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked who told himthose things.

MR GQUZMAN said he read it online and heard it on the radio. He
said he al so researched the bill.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he is aware that optonetrists have been
all owed to prescribe narcotics for nine years.

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 29, 2016



MR. GUZMAN said he wasn’'t aware of that. He asked if they can
prescri be to the sanme degree.

SENATOR G ESSEL said it nmay help if he was aware that many of
the courses optonetrists take are taught by the sanme instructors
as ophthalnologists and they both obtain the sane DEA
aut hori zati on.

3:02:41 PM

MATTHEW GLYNN, representing hinself, testified in opposition to
SB 55. He shared his story of wanting |aser surgery and only
finding he wasn’ t a candi dat e when he visited an
opht hal nol ogi st.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if any of the optonetrists perforned
surgery.

MR. GLYNN answer ed no.

3:04: 36 PM

TIM SMTH, representing hinself, testified in opposition to SB
55. He spoke as a nedical professional who was not in favor of
cross training in different nodalities for |icensure.

3:05: 38 PM

EDDY | VI ZARY, representing hinself, testified in opposition to
SB 55. He said that he feels that only a qualified surgeon
shoul d be able to operate on eyes. He shared his personal story.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked who told him that optonetrists would be
doi ng eye surgery.

MR. | VIZARY restated his personal story and the inportance of
being able to see.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if an optonetrist had ever done surgery or
put a needle in his eye.

MR. 1 VIZARY said yes and he told himto stop.

3:08: 28 PM

DR. M CHAEL BRENNAN, Opht hal nol ogi st , Al aska Opht hal nol ogy
Society, testified in opposition to SB 55. He shared his
prof essi onal background. He maintained that the bill endangers
the health of the citizens of Alaska. The bill has two inherent
flaws; the brevity in the education and training required to
manage conpl ex nedical and surgical conditions, and second, the

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 29, 2016



vague | anguage regarding penetrative surgery. He also addressed
the over-prescribing of potent pharmaceuticals.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how nmuch noney the society has invested in
ads opposing the bill.

DR. BRENNAN said the organization invests in a wide variety of
advocacy activities in order to provide patient safety. He said
he has not made a direct contribution to those ads. He did not
know how nuch the organi zati on spent.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he is aware that optonmetry has been
prescri bing controll ed substances for nine years.

DR. BRENNAN said they don't for for schedule IA and schedule I1A
drugs. He said the bill expands the pharnaceutical array.

SENATOR G ESSEL said the bill doesn’t say that.

3:15: 28 PM
At ease

3:16: 08 PM
CHAI R COSTELLO reconvened the neeting.

3:16:49 PM
LUCRETIA ANN DEM S, representing herself, testified in
opposition to SB 55. She doesn’t think that optonetrists should
be authorized to do the same surgical procedures as an
opht hal nol ogi st. She said they don’'t have enough training or
backgr ound.

SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that an optonetrist refers people
when they need surgery.

3:20: 29 PM
DR. ALFRED DERAMUS, Ophthal nol ogist, testified in opposition to
SB 55. He shared his professional background. He said the

legislation is poorly witten and wll not gather consensus on
either side of the issue because of its content. Some of the
| anguage such as "invasive surgery” and "injections" are

inflammatory and don’t adequately address what is and is not
sur gi cal

3:23:25 PM
PAUL BARNEY, Chair, Alaska Board of Optonetry Exam ners,
testified in support of SB 55. He said his primary concern is

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 16- March 29, 2016



the safety of the public. In his four years on the board there
have not been conplaints that rose to the level of an
investigation. In general, optonetrists are conservative and
cautious providers. The bill will not allow the board to wite
regul ations outside of optonetrists' training. He nentioned the
board has oversight by the attorney general, the sanme as other
heal thcare providers. They have no intention of Ilifting the
four-day |limt on prescribing narcotics. SB 55 would nodernized
the definition of optonetry and reflect what is currently taught
in schools of optonetry.

3:27:21 PM

DR. DAVI D ZUMBRO, Ophthal nol ogi st, testified in opposition to SB
55. He said his primary issue with SB 55 is that it attenpts to
define invasive surgery. As witten, the definition is
i nconplete and wi de open to interpretation. He suggested that be
changed.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he has had optonetrists do surgery and
had the patient referred to him afterwards.

DR. ZUMBRO sai d no.

3:29:12 PM

DR. ROBERT ARNOLD, representing hinself, testified in opposition
to SB 55. He said, as a pediatric ophthal nol ogist, he perforns
two conplex procedures that are not described in the bill. H's
concern is that the definition of surgery is |oose and may be
open to interpretation. He noted oversight of safety for surgery
in Alaska occurs via licensure and hospital privilege surgica
revi ew

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if he’'s had problens with optonetrists
perform ng rash interventions.

DR ARNOLD said he has not experienced surgical care by
optonetrists, but he has experienced excellent care by them H's
partners have been optonetrists. He said his concern is, as an
educat or, t hat sur gi cal over si ght S not afforded to
optometri sts.

3:32: 09 PM

STEVE  DOBSON, Pr esi dent, Al aska Optonetric Associ ati on,
testified in support of SB 55. He shared his professional
background. He said Al askans have benefitted trenmendously from
the increase in access to quality nedical optonetric eye care
due to past legislation. The goal of the association is to

SENATE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 29, 2016



ensure the best practice of care and to attract the best
graduates from the colleges of optonetry. SB 55 is not about
all ow ng eye surgery, but rather about board autonony. To date

the board has denonstrated superb confidence, integrity, and
professionalism protecting the interest of the public and
passage of the bill would allow continuation of that.

CHAIR COSTELLO closed public testinony and held SB 55 in
comm ttee.

3:36: 06 PM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Costello adjourned the Senate Labor and Comrerce Standing
Comm ttee neeting at 3:36 p.m

SENATE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 29, 2016



